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Textual information (1)

Disclosurein auditor’sreport explanatory [Text Block]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda
Clinical Research Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its joint venture comprising of the consolidated B alance sheet as at March 31 2023 , the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
consolidated S tatement of Changesin Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of
other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiary and joint venture, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give atrue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group and its joint venture as at March 31, 2023, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changesin equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SASs), as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the* Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of
theConsolidated Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group and joint venture in accordance with the * Code
of Ethics'issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide abasis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directorsis responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regards.

Responsihilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statementsin
terms of the requirements of the Act that give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its
joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)



specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the



consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companiesincluded in the Group and of its joint
venture are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of itsjoint venture are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financia statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAswill aways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statementsin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and
itsjoint venture to continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
and itsjoint venture of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter



(@ Wedid not audit the financia statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary, whose financia statements
include total assets of Rs 0.64 million as at March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs Nil and net cash outflows of Rs 0.20 million for the
year ended on that date. These financia statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditor, which financial
statements, other financial information and auditor’ s report have been furnished to us by the management. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group's share of net profit of Rs. 12.97 million for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of onejoint venture, whose financial statement, other financial information have been audited by
other auditor and whose report have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financia statements, in so far
asit relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and joint venture , and our report in terms of sub-sections (3)
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far asit relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and joint venture is based solely on the reports of such other
auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financia statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of Indiain terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financia
statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary company and joint venture company, incorporated in India, as noted in the
‘Other Matter’ paragraph we givein the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements and the other financial information of subsidiary and joint venture, as noted in the ‘ other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

@ We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b)  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the financial
statements have been kept so far asit appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors except that with respect
to holding Company and subsidiaries, the backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not
been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financia statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of
the Act, of its subsidiary companies and joint venture , none of the directors of the Group’s companies and joint venture incorporated in
India, isdisqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

()] The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

(9)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financia controls with reference to consolidated financia statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companiesincorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to thisreport. This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘ Report on internal financial controls’) of one joint venture, since in our opinion and according to the
information and explanation given to us, the said report on internal financial controls is not applicable to the this joint venture basis the
exemption available to the Company under MCA natification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017, read with corrigendum dated July 13,
2017 on reporting on internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements;

(h)  Inour opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiary and joint venture incorporated in
India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in Indiato their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;



(@) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’ s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiary and joint venture, as noted in the ‘ Other matter’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position of
the Group and joint venture in its consolidated financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group and joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2023;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture, incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. @) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and joint venture which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and joint venture
respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture (“ Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and joint venture which are companiesincorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and joint
venture respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries and joint venture from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that
performed by the auditors of the subsidiary and joint venture which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture companies,
incorporated in India.

vi) Asproviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.ef. April 1, 2023 for the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries and joint venture companies incorporated in India, hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For SRBC& COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 101974

UDIN: 23101974BGUFPB4550

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad



VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

Date: September 05, 2023

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited).

Qualifications or adverse remarks by us and the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the
companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

Holding company/ Clause number of the CARO
S.No || Name CIN subsidiaries/ associate/ report which is qualified or is
joint venture adverse
L Veeda Clinical
U73100GJ2004PLC044023 || Holding Company Clause (iii)(c)

Research Limited

Clause (i)(a)(A)
Clause (iii)(b)

. . Clause (iii)(c)
2. || Bioneeds India U01409KA2007PTC042282 || Subsidiary Company

Private Limited .
Clause (iv)

Clause (vii)(a)

Clause (ix)(d)

For SRBC& COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 101974

UDIN: 23101974BGUFPB4550

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad

Date: September 05, 2023

Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited).



Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financia statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical
Research Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited
theinternal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’ s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companiesincluded in the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financia reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interna Financial
Controls Over Financia Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilitiesinclude the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s palicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies’ internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “ Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financia controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
ng the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and eval uating the desigh and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’ s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report referred to
in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company'sinternal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statementsis a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statementsincludes
those poalicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabl e assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statementsin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financia controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companiesincorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial



statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2023, based on the internal control over financia reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICALI.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far asit relates to this one subsidiary, which are companiesincorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such subsidiary incorporated in India.

For SRBC& COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 23101974BGUFPB4550
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad

Date:  September 05, 2023

Textual information (2)

Auditor's qualification(s), reservation(s) or adverseremark(s) in auditors' report
Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’ s report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited). Qualifications or adverse remarks by us and the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are: S.No Name CIN
Holding company/ subsidiaries/ associate/ joint venture Clause number of the CARO report which is qualified or is adverse 1. Veeda Clinical
Research Limited U73100GJ2004PL C044023 Holding Company Clause (iii)(c) 2. Bioneeds India Private Limited
U01409K A2007PTC042282 Subsidiary Company Clause (i)(8)(A) Clause (iii)(b) Clause (iii)(c) Clause (iv) Clause (vii)(a) Clause (ix)(d)



[110000] Balance sheet

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Balance sheet [Abstract]
Assets [Abstract]
Non-current assets [Abstract]
Property, plant and equipment 2,137.66 1,626.73 739.12
Capital work-in-progress 186.95 190.18
Goodwill 1,080.58 1,080.58 0]
Other intangible assets 220.37| 223.87| 4.46
Intangible assets under devel opment 39.75 13.72
Non-current financial assets [Abstract]
Non-current investments 0 0
Trade receivables, non-current 0 0
L oans, non-current 0 15.11
Other non-current financial assets 423.85 215.94|
Tota non-current financial assets 423.85 231.05
Deferred tax assets (net) 0 0
Other non-current assets 316.58 284.96
Total non-current assets 4,405.74 3,651.09
Current assets [Abstract]
Inventories 71.08 84.51
Current financial assets [Abstract]
Current investments 546.87 883.98
Trade receivables, current 1,051.24 981.43
Cash and cash equivalents 368.71] 595.89
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 244 29.56
Loans, current 0 0
Other current financial assets 453.03 401.71
Total current financial assets 2,663.85 2,892.57
Other current assets 206.99 147.24
Total current assets 2,941.92 3,124.32
Total assets 7,347.66 6,775.41
Equity and liabilities [Abstract]
Equity [Abstract]
Equity attributable to owners of parent [Abstract]
Equity share capital 105.787972 105.787972 358.30976
Other equity 4,465.812028| 4,195.812028
Total equity attributable to owners of parent 45716 4,301.6
Non controlling interest 57.73 71.22
Total equity 4,629.33 4,372.82
Liabilities [Abstract]
Non-current liabilities [Abstract]
Non-current financial liabilities [Abstract]
Borrowings, non-current 259.12 353.5
Trade payables, non-current 0 0
Other non-current financia liabilities 545.07 424.99
Total non-current financial liabilities 804.19 778.49
Provisions, non-current 66.83 53.3
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 37.37, 57.3
Total non-current liabilities 908.39 889.09
Current liabilities [Abstract]
Current financial liabilities [Abstract]
Borrowings, current 226.62, 118.52
Trade payables, current 221.7, 247.78
Other current financial liabilities 334.72) 333.56
Total current financial liabilities 783.04 699.86
Other current liabilities 997.19 781.74
Provisions, current 22.13 29.42
Current tax liabilities 7.58 2.48
Tota current liabilities 1,809.94 1,5135
Total liabilities 2,718.33 2,402.59
Total equity and liabilities 7,347.66 6,775.41




[210000] Statement of profit and loss

Earnings per share[Table] (D
Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR
Classes of equity share capital [Axis] Equity shares[Member] Equity shares 1 [Member]
01/04/2022 01/04/2021 01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to to to to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Statement of profit and loss [Abstract]
Earnings per share [Abstract]
Earnings per share [Line items]
Basic earnings per share [Abstract]
Basic earnings (|oss) per share from [INR/shares] 7.58|  [INR/shares] 10.26| [INR/shares] 7.58| [INR/shares] 10.26
continuing operations
33‘90 earmings (|oss) per share from [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] O [INR/shares] O [INR/shares] 0
i scontinued operations
Total basic earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] 7.58| [INR/shares] 10.26| [INR/shares] 7.58| [INR/shares] 10.26
Diluted earnings per share [Abstract]
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from [INR/shares] 757 [INR/shares] 10.24] [INR/shares] 7.57| [INR/shares] 10.24
continuing operations
5"“‘9". earnings (10ss) per share from [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shareg 0|  [INR/shares] O [INR/shares] 0
i scontinued operations
Total diluted earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares| 7.57| [INR/shares] 10.24| [INR/shares] 7.57| [INR/shares] 10.24




Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Statement of profit and loss [Abstract]
Income [Abstract]
Revenue from operations 4,095.78 2,880.26]
Other income 106.33 50.83
Tota income 4,202.11] 2,931.09
Expenses [Abstract]
Cost of materials consumed 329.87 282.6
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
stock-in-trade 0 0
Employee benefit expense 1,091.82 872.73
Finance costs 138.82 96.29
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense 380.25] 254.06|
Other expenses 1,639.88 1,110.67
Total expenses 3,580.64 2,616.35
Profit before exceptional items and tax 621.47 314.74
Exceptional items before tax 0 341.17,
Total profit before tax 621.47| 655.91
Tax expense [Abstract]
Current tax 189.86 94.24
Deferred tax -19.29 60.53
Total tax expense 170.57 154.77
Total profit (loss) for period from continuing operations 450.9 501.14
Share of profit (loss) of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method -2667 344
Total profit (loss) for period 424.23 504.58
Profit or loss, attributable to owners of parent 401.15 480.71
Profit or loss, attributable to non-controlling interests 23.08 23.87
Comprehensive income OCI components presented net of tax [Abstract]
Whether company has other comprehensive income OCI components No No
presented net of tax
Other comprehensive income net of tax [Abstract]
Total other comprehensive income -1.86 0.65
Other comprehensive income attributable to net of tax [Abstract]
Other Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent -2.08 0.23
Other Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling 022 0.42
interests ’ )
Total comprehensive income 422.37 505.23]
Comprehensive income attributable to net of tax [Abstract]
Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent 399.07| 480.94
Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling interests 23.3 24.29
Comprehensive income OCI components presented before tax [Abstract]
Whether company has comprehensive income OCI components presented v v
before tax s s
Other comprehensive income before tax [Abstract]
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, before tax [Abstract]
Other comprehensivei ncome, bef_ore tax, gains (losses) on 248 0.89
remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted f(_)r_ using equi_ty 0 047
method that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss, before tax
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss, before tax 248 0.72
Total other comprehensive income, before tax -2.48 0.72
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
[Abstract]
Income tax relating to remeasurements of defined benefit plans
of other comprehensive income -0.62 0.07
Aggregated income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to -0.62 0.07
profit or loss
Income tax relating to share of other
comprehensive income of associates and joint 0 0

ventures accounted for using equity method that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to profit or loss [Abstract]




Aggregated income tax relating to components of other

comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit 0 0
or loss
Income tax relating to share of other
comprehensive income of associates and joint 0 0
ventures accounted for using equity method that
will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income -1.86 0.65
Other comprehensive income attributable to [Abstract]
Other Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent -2.08 0.23
Other Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling
interests 0.22 0.42
Total comprehensive income 422.37 505.23
Comprehensive income attributable to [Abstract]
Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent 399.07| 480.94
Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling interests 233 24.29
Earnings per share explanatory [TextBlock] [T;ig%z Omformatl on (3) [nget%z O\:\Hformanon @
Earnings per share [Abstract]
Basic earnings per share [Abstract]
Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations [INR/shares] 7.58 [INR/shares] 10.26|
Basic earnings (10ss) per share from discontinued operations [INR/shares] O [INR/shares] 0
Total basic earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] 7.58] [INR/shares] 10.26
Diluted earnings per share [Abstract]
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations [INR/shares] 7.57| [INR/shares] 10.24
Diluted earnings (l0ss) per share from discontinued operations [INR/shares] O [INR/shares] 0
Total diluted earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] 7.57| [INR/shares] 10.24




VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

Textual information (3)

Earnings per share explanatory [Text Block]

Earnings per

29 share

Basic EPS
amounts are
calculated
by dividing
the profit for
the year
attributable
to equity
holders of
the Holding
Company by
the weighted
average
number of
Equity
shares
outstanding
during the
year.

Diluted EPS
amounts are
calculated
by dividing
the profit
attributable
to equity
holders of
the Holding
Company by
the weighted
average
number of
Equity
shares
outstanding
during the
year plus the
weighted
average
number of
Equity
shares that
would be
issued on
conversion
of all the
dilutive
potential
Equity
shares into
Equity
shares.

The
following
table reflects
the income
and
earnings per
share data

14



VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

used in the

15



basic and
diluted EPS
computation:

VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

Particulars

Year ended
March 31,
2023

Year ended
March 31,
2022

Profit after
tax
attributable
to equity
shareholders
for the year

401.15

480.71

Nominal
value of
equity share
(Amount in
Rs.)

Total
number of
equity
shares

5,28,93,986

5,28,93,986

Weighted
average
number of
equity
shares

5,28,93,986

4,68,62,176

Effect of
dilution:

Dilutive
effect of
stock
options
granted
under ESOP

1,22,896

1,04,964

Weighted
average
number of
shares
adjusted for
the effect of
dilution

5,30,16,882

4,69,67,140

Earning per
equity share
(Amount in
Rs.)

Basic
earnings per
share

7.58

10.26

Diluted
earnings per
share

7.57

10.24

Note:

Ther above
earning per
share as at

16



VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

March 31,
2022 has
been
computed
based on
revised
number of
shares
considering
split and
bonus issue
during the
year ended
March 31,
2022.

17



VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

Textual information (4)

Earnings per share explanatory [Text Block]

(All amounts
in Indian
rupees
million,
unless
otherwise
stated)

Earnings per

29 share

Basic EPS
amounts are
calculated
by dividing
the profit for
the year
attributable
to equity
holders of
the Holding
Company by
the weighted
average
number of
Equity
shares
outstanding
during the
year.

Diluted EPS
amounts are
calculated
by dividing
the profit
attributable
to equity
holders of
the Holding
Company
(after
adjusting for
interest on
the
compulsory
convertible
preference
shares) by
the weighted
average
number of
Equity
shares
outstanding
during the
year plus
the weighted
average
number of
Equity
shares that
would be
issued on

18



VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

conversion
of all the
dilutive
potential
Equity

19



shares into
Equity
shares.

VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

The
following
table reflects
the income
and
earnings per
share data
used in the
basic and
diluted EPS
computation:

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2022

Year ended

March 31, 2021

Profit after
tax for the
year

480.71

Less:
preference
dividend for
the year

Profit after
tax for the
year

480.71

62

Nominal
value of
equity share
(Amount in
Rs.) (refer
note i below)

Total
number of
equity
shares

5,28,93,986

6,

Weighted
average
number of
equity
shares

4,68,62,176

5¢

Weighted
average
number of
equity
shares after
considering
effect of
share split
and bonus

(A)

4,68,62,176

3,52,78,223

Total
number of
CCCPS
Class 'A'

93,946

Weighted
average

20




VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

number of
CCCPS
Class 'A'

93,946

Weighted
average
number of
CCCPS
Class 'A'
after
considering
effect of
share split
and bonus

(B)

56,36,760

Total
number of
shares for
basic EPS
after
considering
effect of
share split
and bonus
(nominal
value of
equity share
Rs. 2) (C=
A+ B)

4,68,62,176

4,09,14,983

Effect of
dilution:

Dilutive
effect of
stock
options
granted
under ESOP

1,749

474

Dilutive
effect on
weighted
average
number of
stock
options
granted
under ESOP
after
considering
effect of
share split
and bonus

1,04,964

28,431

Weighted
average
number of
shares
adjusted for
the effect of
dilution

4,69,67,140

4,09,43,414

Earning per
equity share
(Amount in
Rs.)

Basic
earnings per
share (refer

21




VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

note ii 10.26 15
below)
Diluted
earnings per 10.24 15
share
I—
* Figure
nullified in
conversion
of Rupees in
million.
|

Notes:

i. The board
of directors
of Holding
company in
their
meeting
held on
June 26,
2021
approved
split of each
equity share
of Rs. 10
eachinto 5
equity
shares of
Rs. 2 each
which was
approved by
members in
their
meeting
held on
June 29,
2021.
Hence,
nominal
value of
equity share
is presented
as Rs. 2 per
equity
share.

ii. Above
earnings per
share has
been
computed
based on
revised
number of
equity
shares
considering
split of
equity
shares and
issue of
bonus
shares.

22



[400200] Statement of changesin equity

Statement of changesin equity [Table]

-

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Components of equity [AXis]

Equity [Member]

Equity attributable|
to the equity
holders of the

parent [Member]

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Other equity [Abstract]

Statement of changesin equity [Line items]

Equity [Abstract]

Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable)

Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]

Effect of changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior period errors

o

Adjustments to equity for restatement

Changes in equity [Abstract]

Comprehensive income [Abstract]

Profit (loss) for period

424.23

504.58

401.15

Changes in comprehensive income components

-1.86]

0.65

-2.08

Total comprehensive income

422.37

505.23

399.07

Other changes in equity [Abstract]

Other additions to reserves

218.48

485.7

218.48

Deductions to reserves [Abstract]

Securities premium adjusted bonus shares

Securities premium adjusted writing off
preliminary expenses

Securities premium adjusted writing
off discount expenses issue shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted premium
payable redemption preference shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted
purchase own shares other securities
under section 68

Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted

117.92

Other deductions to reserves

384.33

159.64

347.54

Total deductionsto reserves

384.33

277.56

347.54

Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and general reserve [Abstract]

Dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]

Interim equity dividend
appropriation

Interim special dividend
appropriation

Total interim dividend appropriation

Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Final equity dividend appropriation

Final special dividend appropriation

Total final dividend appropriation

Total dividend appropriation

Equity dividend tax appropriation

Other appropriations

Transfer to Retained earnings

Total appropriations for dividend,
dividend tax and retained earnings

Appropriation towards bonus shares

O] © |O|lo|lo|o|lo[o|O

Increase (decrease) through other
contributions by owners, equity

O |0 ©O |o|lolo[O|O|O|O

3,017.24]

O |0 O |o|lo[o[o|Oo|O]|O

Increase (decrease) through other
distributions to owners, equity

o

o




Increase (decrease) through other changes, 0 0 0

equity

Increase (decrease) through changesin

ownership interestsin subsidiaries that 0| -799.63 0

do not result in loss of control, equity

Other changes in equity, others 0 0 0

Total other changes in equity -165.85 2,425.75 -129.06

Total increase (decrease) in equity 256.52 2,930.98 270.01

Other equity at end of period 4,523.55 4,267.03 1,336.05] 4,465.82




Statement of changesin equity [Table]

e

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Components of equity [Axis]

Equity attributable to the equity
holders of the parent [Member]

Share application money pending

allotment [Member]

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

Other equity [Abstract]

Statement of changes in equity [Line items]

Equity [Abstract]

Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable)

Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]

Effect of changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior period errors

Adjustments to equity for restatement

Changes in equity [Abstract]

Comprehensive income [Abstract]

Profit (loss) for period

480.71

Changes in comprehensive income components

0.23

Total comprehensive income

480.94

Other changes in equity [Abstract]

Other additions to reserves

369.63

Deductions to reserves [Abstract]

Securities premium adjusted bonus shares

Securities premium adjusted writing off
preliminary expenses

Securities premium adjusted writing
off discount expenses issue shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted premium
payable redemption preference shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted
purchase own shares other securities
under section 68

Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted

117.92

Other deductions to reserves

159.64

Total deductionsto reserves

277.56

Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and genera reserve [Abstract]

Dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]

Interim equity dividend
appropriation

Interim special dividend
appropriation

Total interim dividend appropriation

Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Final equity dividend appropriation

Final specia dividend appropriation

Total final dividend appropriation

Total dividend appropriation

Equity dividend tax appropriation

Other appropriations

Transfer to Retained earnings

Total appropriations for dividend,
dividend tax and retained earnings

Appropriation towards bonus shares

o] O |o|lo|o[o[O|O0]|O

Increase (decrease) through other
contributions by owners, equity

3,017.24

o |0 ©O |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o

o [O] © |0o|lo|o[o[o[Oo]|o

Increase (decrease) through other
distributions to owners, equity

Increase (decrease) through other changes,
equity

Increase (decrease) through changesin
ownership interestsin subsidiaries that
do not result in loss of control, equity

-730.49

Other changes in equity, others




Total other changes in equity 2,378.82 213 0
Total increase (decrease) in equity 2,859.76 213 0
Other equity at end of period 4,195.81 1,336.05 213 0
Statement of changesin eguity [Table] .(3)
Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR
Share application
Components of equity [AXis] mo;ﬁ)/t?neggmg Reserves [Member]
[Member]
01/04/2022 01/04/2021
31/03/2021 to to 31/03/2021
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Other equity [Abstract]
Statement of changes in equity [Line items]
Equity [Abstract]
Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable) 0 0
Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]
Effect of changes in accounting policy 0| 0
Correction of prior period errors 0 0
Adjustments to equity for restatement 0 0
Changes in equity [Abstract]
Comprehensive income [Abstract]
Profit (loss) for period 401.15 480.71
Changes in comprehensive income components -2.08 0.23
Total comprehensive income 399.07| 480.94
Other changes in equity [Abstract]
Other additions to reserves 5.48 369.63
Deductions to reserves [Abstract]
Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted P 0 117.92
Other deductions to reserves 347.54 159.64]
Total deductions to reserves 347.54 277.56
Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and general reserve [Abstract]
Dividend appropriation [Abstract]
Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]
Interim equity dividend
appropriation 0 0
Interim special dividend
appropriation 0 0
Total interim dividend appropriation
Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]
Final equity dividend appropriation 0 0
Final special dividend appropriation 0| 0
Total final dividend appropriation 0 0
Total dividend appropriation 0 0
Equity dividend tax appropriation 0 0
Other appropriations 0| 0
Transfer to Retained earnings 0 0
T_ot_aJ appropriationsfor divi de_nd, 0 0
dividend tax and retained earnings
Appropriation towards bonus shares 0| 0
Increase (decrease) through other 0 3,017.24
contributions by owners, equity
Increase (decrease) through‘other 0 0
distributions to owners, equity
Increase (decrease) through other changes, 0 0
equity
Increase (decrease) through changesin
ownership interestsin subsidiaries that 0 -730.49
do not result in loss of control, equity
Other changesin equity, others 0 0
Total other changes in equity -342.06 2,378.82
Total increase (decrease) in equity 57.01 2,859.76
Other equity at end of period 0 4,252.82) 4,195.81 1,336.05




Statement of changesin equity [Table]

(4

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Components of equity [Axis]

Capital reserves [Member]

Securities
premium reserve
[Member]

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Other equity [Abstract]

Statement of changes in equity [Line items]

Equity [Abstract]

Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable)

Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]

Effect of changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior period errors

Adjustments to equity for restatement

Changes in equity [Abstract]

Comprehensive income [Abstract]

Profit (loss) for period

Changes in comprehensive income components

Total comprehensive income

Other changesin equity [Abstract]

Other additions to reserves

Deductions to reserves [Abstract]

Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted

Other deductions to reserves

346.9

Total deductionsto reserves

346.9

Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and genera reserve [Abstract]

Dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]

Interim equity dividend
appropriation

Interim special dividend
appropriation

Total interim dividend appropriation

Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Final equity dividend appropriation

Final special dividend appropriation

Tota final dividend appropriation

Total dividend appropriation

Equity dividend tax appropriation

Other appropriations

Transfer to Retained earnings

Total appropriations for dividend,
dividend tax and retained earnings

Appropriation towards bonus shares

Increase (decrease) through other
contributions by owners, equity

O |0 O |0o|lo|lo[O|O|O|O

O |0 O |o|lololOo|O|O|O

O |0 O |o|o|o[o[Oo|O]|O

Increase (decrease) through other
distributions to owners, equity

Increase (decrease) through other changes,
equity

Increase (decrease) through changesin
ownership interestsin subsidiaries that
do not result in loss of control, equity

-730.49

Other changes in equity, others

0

0

Total other changes in equity

-346.9

-730.49

0

Total increase (decrease) in equity

-346.9

-730.49

0

Other equity at end of period

-1,077.39)

-730.49

3,703.47




Statement of changesin equity [Table]

(5

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Components of equity [Axis]

Securities premium reserve [Member]

Capital redemption reserves[Member]

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

Other equity [Abstract]

Statement of changes in equity [Line items]

Equity [Abstract]

Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable)

Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]

Effect of changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior period errors

Adjustments to equity for restatement

Changes in equity [Abstract]

Comprehensive income [Abstract]

Profit (loss) for period

Changes in comprehensive income components

Total comprehensive income

Other changes in equity [Abstract]

Other additions to reserves

Deductions to reserves [Abstract]

Securities premium adjusted bonus shares

Securities premium adjusted writing off
preliminary expenses

Securities premium adjusted writing
off discount expenses issue shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted premium
payable redemption preference shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted
purchase own shares other securities
under section 68

Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted

117.92

Other deductions to reserves

38.84

Total deductionsto reserves

117.92

38.84

Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and genera reserve [Abstract]

Dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]

Interim equity dividend
appropriation

Interim special dividend
appropriation

Total interim dividend appropriation

Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Final equity dividend appropriation

Final specia dividend appropriation

Tota final dividend appropriation

Total dividend appropriation

Equity dividend tax appropriation

Other appropriations

Transfer to Retained earnings

Total appropriations for dividend,
dividend tax and retained earnings

Appropriation towards bonus shares

o] O |o|lolo[0[O|O0|O

Increase (decrease) through other
contributions by owners, equity

3,017.24

o |0 O |o|o|o|o|o|o|o

o |[O] © |0o|lo|o[o[Oo|O]|O

Increase (decrease) through other
distributions to owners, equity

Increase (decrease) through other changes,
equity

Increase (decrease) through changesin
ownership interestsin subsidiaries that
do not result in loss of control, equity

Other changes in equity, others

0

Total other changes in equity

3,250.68|

-38.84




Total increase (decrease) in equity 3,250.68, 0 -38.84
Other equity at end of period 3,703.47 452.79 0 0
Statement of changesin equity [Table] ..(6)
Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR
Capital
Components of equity [Axis] red;’r)]ption Shar e options outstanding account [M ember]
reserves [Member]
01/04/2022 01/04/2021
31/03/2021 to to 31/03/2021
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Other equity [Abstract]
Statement of changesin equity [Line items]
Equity [Abstract]
Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable) 0 0
Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]
Effect of changes in accounting policy 0| 0
Correction of prior period errors 0| 0
Adjustments to equity for restatement 0 0
Changes in equity [Abstract]
Comprehensive income [Abstract]
Profit (loss) for period 0 0
Changes in comprehensive income components 0 0
Total comprehensive income 0 0
Other changes in equity [Abstract]
Other additions to reserves 4.83 18.27
Deductions to reserves [Abstract]
Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted 0 0
Other deductions to reserves 0.64 0
Total deductions to reserves 0.64 0
Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and general reserve [Abstract]
Dividend appropriation [Abstract]
Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]
Interim equity dividend
appropriation o 0
Interim special dividend
appropriation 0 0
Total interim dividend appropriation
Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]
Final equity dividend appropriation 0 0
Final special dividend appropriation 0 0
Total fina dividend appropriation 0| 0
Total dividend appropriation 0| 0
Equity dividend tax appropriation 0 0
Other appropriations 0 0
Transfer to Retained earnings 0| 0
'I"ot‘al appropriationsfor dividgnd, 0 0
dividend tax and retained earnings
Appropriation towards bonus shares 0 0
Increase (decrease) through other
contributions by owners, equity 0 0
Increase (decrease) through_other 0 0
distributions to owners, equity
Increase (decrease) through other changes, 0 0
equity
Increase (decrease) through changesin
ownership interestsin subsidiaries that 0 0
do not result in loss of control, equity
Other changes in equity, others 0| 0
Total other changes in equity 4.19 18.27
Total increase (decrease) in equity 4.19 18.27
Other equity at end of period 38.84 284 24.21] 5.94




Statement of changesin equity [Table]

A7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Components of equity [AXis]

Retained ear nings [M ember]

Other retained
earning [Member]

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Other equity [Abstract]

Statement of changes in equity [Line items]

Equity [Abstract]

Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable)

Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]

Effect of changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior period errors

o

Adjustments to equity for restatement

Changes in equity [Abstract]

Comprehensive income [Abstract]

Profit (loss) for period

401.15

480.71

401.15

Changes in comprehensive income components

-2.08

0.23

-2.08

Total comprehensive income

399.07|

480.94

399.07

Other changes in equity [Abstract]

Other additions to reserves

0.65]

0.65)

Deductions to reserves [Abstract]

Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted

Other deductions to reserves

120.8

Total deductionsto reserves

120.8,

Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and general reserve [Abstract]

Dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]

Interim equity dividend
appropriation

Interim special dividend
appropriation

Total interim dividend appropriation

Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Final equity dividend appropriation

Final special dividend appropriation

Total fina dividend appropriation

Total dividend appropriation

Equity dividend tax appropriation

Other appropriations

Transfer to Retained earnings

Total appropriations for dividend,
dividend tax and retained earnings

Appropriation towards bonus shares

Increase (decrease) through other
contributions by owners, equity

O |0 ©O |0o|0|l0[O|O|O|O

O |0 O |0o|lolo(O|O|O0|O

O |0 O |o|o|o[Oo[O|O]|O

Increase (decrease) through other
distributions to owners, equity

o

o

o

Increase (decrease) through other changes,
equity

Increase (decrease) through changesin
ownership interestsin subsidiaries that
do not result in loss of control, equity

Other changesin equity, others

0

Total other changes in equity

0.65

-120.8

0.65

Total increase (decrease) in equity

399.72

360.14

399.72

Other equity at end of period

1,598.34

1,198.62

838.48

1,598.34




Statement of changesin equity [Table]

NG)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Components of equity [Axis]

Other retained earning [Member]

Non-controlling interests [M ember]

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

Other equity [Abstract]

Statement of changes in equity [Line items]

Equity [Abstract]

Balance at beginning of period (if restatement
is applicable)

Adjustments to equity for restatement [Abstract]

Effect of changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior period errors

o

o

o

Adjustments to equity for restatement

Changes in equity [Abstract]

Comprehensive income [Abstract]

Profit (loss) for period

480.71

23.08

23.87

Changes in comprehensive income components

0.23

0.22

0.42

Total comprehensive income

480.94

23.3

24.29

Other changes in equity [Abstract]

Other additions to reserves

116.07

Deductions to reserves [Abstract]

Securities premium adjusted bonus shares

Securities premium adjusted writing off
preliminary expenses

Securities premium adjusted writing
off discount expenses issue shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted premium
payable redemption preference shares
debentures

Securities premium adjusted
purchase own shares other securities
under section 68

Other utilisation of securities premium
if permitted

Other deductions to reserves

120.8

36.79

Total deductionsto reserves

120.8

36.79

Appropriations for dividend, dividend tax
and genera reserve [Abstract]

Dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Interim dividend appropriation
[Abstract]

Interim equity dividend
appropriation

Interim special dividend
appropriation

Total interim dividend appropriation

Final dividend appropriation [Abstract]

Final equity dividend appropriation

Final specia dividend appropriation

Tota final dividend appropriation

Total dividend appropriation

Equity dividend tax appropriation

Other appropriations

Transfer to Retained earnings

Total appropriations for dividend,
dividend tax and retained earnings

Appropriation towards bonus shares

Increase (decrease) through other
contributions by owners, equity

O |0l O |0o|l0o|lo[o[O|O]|O

o |0 O |o|o|o|o|o|o|o

o |[O] © |0o|lo|o[o[Oo|O]|O

Increase (decrease) through other
distributions to owners, equity

Increase (decrease) through other changes,
equity

Increase (decrease) through changesin
ownership interestsin subsidiaries that
do not result in loss of control, equity

-69.14

Other changes in equity, others

Total other changes in equity

-120.8

-36.79

46.93,
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Total increase (decrease) in equity

360.14

-13.49 71.22

Other equity at end of period

1,198.62

838.48

57.73 71.22

Statement of changesin equity [Table]

-9)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Components of equity [AXis] i n't\lero:stogr[]lt/lr gql,"ggr]
31/03/2021
Other equity [Abstract]
Statement of changes in equity [Line items]
Equity [Abstract]
Changesin equity [Abstract]
0

Other equity at end of period

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Disclosure of notes on changes in equity [TextBlock] [Tseegggl OW]mformallon ®) [Tstzgggw]mformanon (6)
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Textual information (5)

Disclosure of notes on changesin equity [Text Block]

14

Other Equity

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31,

Reserves and
surplus

Securities
premium

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

3,703.48

452.79

Changes due to
accounting
policy or prior
period errors

On issue of
equity shares
during the year

3,017.24

On conversion
of CCCPS class
‘A’ into equity
shares during
the year

351.36

Utilized for issue
of bonus equity
shares

(46.03)

Utilized towards
expenses on
fresh issue of
equity shares

(71.88)

Balance at the
end of the year

3,703.48

3,703.48

Capital
redemption
reserve

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

38.84

Changes due to
accounting
policy or prior
period errors

Utilized for issue
of bonus equity
shares

(38.84)

Balance at the
end of the year
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L L] [ | [

Capital reserve

Balance at the
beginning of the

yoar (730.49)

Changes due to
accounting

policy or prior -
period errors

Change on
account of
additional stake
purchased from
non-controlling
interest of
subsidiary

(346.90) (730.49)

Balance at the
end of the year (1,077.39)

(730.49)

Share options
outstanding
reserve

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

24.21

5.94

Changes due to
accounting

policy or prior -
period errors

Reversal on
forfeiture of

ESOP (0.64)

Options granted
to joint venture
during the year
(refer note 31
and note 39)

0.02

0.05

Compensation
for options
granted during
the year (refer
note 39)

4.80

18.22

Balance at the
end of the year 28.39

24.21

Share
application
money pending
allotment

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

Changes due to
accounting

policy or prior -
period errors
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Share
application

. 213.00 -
money received

Balance at the
end of the year 213.00 -

Surplus in the
statement of
profit and loss

Balance at the
beginning of the

1,198.62 838.48
year

Profit for the
year (net of

401.15 480.71
taxes)

Other
comprehensive
profit / (loss) for
the year (net of
taxes)

(2.08) 0.23

Addition on
forfeiture of

ESOP 0.64 )

Utilised for
payment of
dividend to (120.80)
CCCPS Class
A

Balance at the
end of the year 1,598.33 1,198.62

Total other
equity 4,465.82 4,195.82

Nature and
purpose of
reserves:

(1) In cases
where the
holding
Company
issues shares at
a premium,
whether for
cash or
otherwise, a
sum equal to
the aggregate
amount of the
premium
received on
those shares
has been
transferred to
“Securities
Premium”. The
holding
Company may
issue fully
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paid-up bonus
shares to its
members out of
the securities

36



VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

premium and to
buy-back of
shares.

(2) Capital
redemption
reserve
represents the
amount
transferred on
account of buy
back of CCCPS
Class 'B'.

(3) Capital
reserve
represents
non-controlling
interest reserve
created on
acquisition of
additional stake
during the year
ended March
31, 2023 of
11.90% (year
ended March
31, 2022 - 25%)
from
non-controlling
shareholder of
Bioneeds India
Private Limited.

(4) The share
options
outstanding
reserve : The
share options
based payment
reserve is used
to recognize the
grant date fair
value of options
issued to
employees
under employee
stock option
plan.

(5) Surplus in
statement of
profit and loss:
Surplus in
statement of
profit and loss
are the profits /
(losses) that the
Group has
earned /
incurred till
date, less any
transfers to
general reserve,
dividends or
other
distributions
paid to
shareholders.
Retained
earnings include
re-measurement
loss / (gain) on
defined benefit
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plans, net of
taxes that will
not be
reclassified to
the statement of
profit and loss.
Retained
earnings is a
free reserve
available to the
Group and
eligible for
distribution to
shareholders, in
case where it is
having positive
balance
representing net
earnings till
date.
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Textual information (6)

Disclosure of notes on changesin equity [Text Block]

14

Other Equity

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Reserves and
surplus

Securities
premium

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

452.79

273.00

Changes due to
accounting
policy or prior
period errors

On issue of
equity shares
during the year

3,017.24

179.79

On conversion
of CCCPS class
‘A’ into equity
shares during
the year

351.36

Utilized for issue
of bonus equity
shares

(46.03)

Utilized towards
expenses on
fresh issue of
equity shares

(71.88)

Balance at the
end of the year

3,703.48

452.79

Capital
redemption
reserve

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

38.84

38.84

Changes due to
accounting
policy or prior
period errors

Utilized for issue
of bonus equity
shares

(38.84)

Balance at the
end of the year

38.84

1l
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L]

Capital reserve

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

Changes due to
accounting
policy or prior
period errors

Change on
account of
additional stake
purchased from
non-controlling
interest of
subsidiary

(730.49)

Balance at the
end of the year

(730.49)

Share options
outstanding
reserve

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

5.94

Changes due to
accounting
policy or prior
period errors

Options granted
to joint venture
during the year
(refer note 31
and note 39)

0.05

Compensation
for options
granted during
the year (refer
note 39)

18.22

5.94

Balance at the
end of the year

24.21

5.94

Surplus in the
statement of
profit and loss

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

838.48

209.98

Changes due to
accounting
policy or prior
period errors

Profit for the
year (net of
taxes)

480.71

629.67
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Other
comprehensive
profit / (loss) for
the year (net of
taxes)

0.23 (1.17)

Utilised for
payment of
dividend to
CCCPS Class
A

(120.80) -

Balance at the
end of the year 1,198.62 838.48

Total other
equity 4,195.82 1,336.05

Nature and
purpose of
reserves:

(1) In cases
where the
holding
Company
issues shares at
a premium,
whether for
cash or
otherwise, a
sum equal to
the aggregate
amount of the
premium
received on
those shares
has been
transferred to
“Securities
Premium”. The
holding
Company may
issue fully
paid-up bonus
shares to its
members out of
the securities
premium and to
buy-back of
shares.

(2) Capital
redemption
reserve
represents the
amount
transferred on
account of buy
back of CCCPS
Class 'B'.

(3) Capital
reserve
represents
non-controlling
interest reserve
created on
acquisition of
additional stake
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of 25% from
non-controlling
shareholder of
Bioneeds India
Private Limited.

(4) The share
options
outstanding
reserve : The
share options
based payment
reserve is used
to recognize the
grant date fair
value of options
issued to
employees
under employee
stock option
plan.

(5) Surplus in
statement of
profit and loss:
Surplus in
statement of
profit and loss
are the profits /
(losses) that the
Group has
earned /
incurred till
date, less any
transfers to
general reserve,
dividends or
other
distributions
paid to
shareholders.
Retained
earnings include
re-measurement
loss / (gain) on
defined benefit
plans, net of
taxes that will
not be
reclassified to
the statement of
profit and loss.
Retained
earnings is a
free reserve
available to the
Group and
eligible for
distribution to
shareholders, in
case where it is
having positive
balance
representing net
earnings till
date.
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[320000] Cash flow statement, indir ect

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

01/04/2022 | 01/04/2021
to to 31/03/2021
31/03/2023 | 31/03/2022
Statement of cash flows [Abstract]
Whether cash flow statement is applicable on company Yes Yes
Cash flows from used in operating activities [Abstract]
Profit before tax 621.47 655.91]
Adjustments for reconcile profit (loss) [Abstract]
Adjustments for finance costs 138.72 96.29
Adjustments for decrease (increase) in inventories -13.05 -18.64
Adjustments for decrease (increase) in trade receivables, current -87.74 -418.21
Adjustments for decrease (increase) in other non-current assets -99.11] -52.86
Adjustments for other financia assets, non-current 15.13, 62.92
Adjustments for increase (decrease) in trade payables, current -18.53 78.69
Adjustments for increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 218.45| 172.31
Adjustments for increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities 59.23 11.41
Adjustments for depreciation and amortisation expense 380.24] 254.06)
Adjustments for provisions, current 3.75 19.43
Adjustments for unrealised foreign exchange losses gains 4.72 -1.23
Adjustments for interest income 18.26) 20.19
Adjustments for share-based payments 4.8 18.22
Sat;erf I?i/{/ ustments for which cash effects are investing or financing 4013 1285
Other adjustments for non-cash items 79.22 -314.51
Total adjustments for reconcile profit (10ss) 627.44 -125.16
Net cash flows from (used in) operations 1,248.91 530.75
Income taxes paid (refund) 192.21 171.62
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 1,056.7 359.13
Cash flows from used in investing activities [Abstract]
Othe_r cash payments to acquire equity or debt instruments of other 0 0
entities
Other cash payments to acquire interests in joint ventures 0 0
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 0.7 5.96
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 759.01 287.13
Interest received 16.17 17.06
Other inflows (outflows) of cash -521.02 -1,272.55
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities -1,263.16 -1,536.66
Cash flows from used in financing activities [Abstract]
Proceeds from issuing shares 0 2,300.84
Proceeds from borrowings 0| 54.49
Repayments of borrowings 126.81 330.54
Payments of lease ligbilities 77.72 68.26
Dividends paid 0 120.8
Interest paid 103.68| 97.5
Other inflows (outflows) of cash 296.52 (A) -111.93
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities -11.69 1,626.3
Net incr f in iv r
exeéh ar?geears:t éo:;cane;z) cash and cash equivalents before effect of 21815 44877
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents [Abstract]
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivaents -9.03 -2.49
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -227.18 446.28
Cash and cash equivalents cash flow statement at end of period 368.71 595.89 149.61

Footnotes

(A) Thisincludes addition in Cash and Cash Equivalentsin Opening Balance on account of acquisition of subsidiary of Rs. 0.68 min.




[610100] Notes - List of accounting policies

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [ TextBlock]

Textual information (7)
[See below]

Textual information (8)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for borrowing costs [ TextBlock]

Textual information (9)
[See below]

Textual information (10)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for business combinations and goodwill
[TextBlock]

Textual information (11)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for contingent liabilities and
contingent assets [ TextBlock]

Textual information (12)
[See below]

Textual information (13)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for deferred income tax [ TextBlock]

Textual information (14)
[See below]

Textual information (15)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for depreciation expense [ TextBlock]

Textual information (16)
[See below]

Textual information (17)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for derivative financial instruments
[TextBlock]

Textual information (18)
[See below]

Textual information (19)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for determining components of cash and
cash equivalents [ TextBlock]

Textual information (20)
[See below]

Textual information (21)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for earnings per share [TextBlock]

Textual information (22)
[See below]

Textual information (23)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for employee benefits [ TextBlock]

Textual information (24)
[See below]

Textual information (25)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for fair value measurement [TextBlock]

Textual information (26)
[See below]

Textual information (27)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for financial assets [ TextBlock]

Textual information (28)
[See below]

Textual information (29)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for financial instruments [ TextBlock]

Textual information (30)
[See below]

Textual information (31)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss [ TextBlock]

Textual information (32)
[See below]

Textual information (33)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for financial liabilities [ TextBlock]

Textual information (34)
[See below]

Textual information (35)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for foreign currency translation
[TextBlock]

Textual information (36)
[See below]

Textual information (37)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for functional currency [TextBlock]

T h e

Group’s  Consolidated
financial statements are
presented in Indian
Rupees (Rs.), which is
also its functional
currency.

b .
Foreign
currencies

T h e

Company’s  financial
statements are presented
in Indian Rupees (Rs.),
which is also its
functional

currency.

Description of accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets
[TextBlock]

Textual information (38)
[See below]

Textual information (39)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for income tax [ TextBlock]

Textual information (40)
[See below]

Textual information (41)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for intangible assets and goodwill
[TextBlock]

Textual information (42)
[See below]

Textual information (43)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for investment in associates [ TextBlock]

Textua information (44)
[See below]

Textual information (45)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for investment in associates and joint
ventures [ TextBlock]

Textual information (46)
[See below]

Textual information (47)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for investmentsin joint ventures
[TextBlock]

Textual information (48)
[See below]

Textual information (49)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for leases [ TextBlock]

Textual information (50)
[See below]

Textual information (51)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for measuring inventories [ TextBlock]

Textual information (52)
[See below]

Textual information (53)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for property, plant and equipment
[TextBlock]

Textual information (54)
[See below]

Textual information (55)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for provisions [ TextBlock]

Textual information (56)
[See below]

Textual information (57)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for recognition of revenue [ TextBlock]

Textual information (58)
[See below]

Textual information (59)
[See below]

Description of accounting policy for taxes other than income tax
[TextBlock]

Textual information (60)
[See below]




Textual information (7)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary i.e., Bioneeds India Private Limited
(associate till July 15, 2021), its step-down subsidiary companiesi.e., Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited and Activin Chemicals and
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (upto July 20, 2021) and its joint venturei.e., Ingenuity

Biosciences Private Limited.

Bioneeds and its subsidiary companies are in the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development and Regulatory Servicesto
Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies.

The Company, its subsidiary companies, joint venture and associate are collectively referred to as“ Group”.

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company” or “Holding Company”) is
domiciled in Indiawith its registered office at Shivalik Plaza— A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in Indiaand is carrying on the
business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the
early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilitiesin India. The Company provides afull range of servicesin phase | and Il
clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and
Biotechnology Industries worldwide.

The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently pursuant to approval from Registrar of
Companies (“ROC"), the name of the Company has changed from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research
Limited.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on September 05, 2023.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11 to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11,
as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except
when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been indicated as“*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupeesin million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
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associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, thereis a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amajority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group'’ s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
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Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint ventureis atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ sinvestments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’ s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognisesits share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policiesin line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment |oss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal cul ates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture' in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation
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The Financia Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for
consolidation:

Name of the Company

Nature of relation with the company

Percentage of voting

Power as on
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited éﬁig%?;?y%g&;#g 15, 2021) and 87.00% 75.10%
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% 100.00%

2021)

Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals
Private Limited #

Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16,
2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneedsw.e.f. July 20, 2021.

(C) Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group, its associate and its joint venture presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset istreated as current when it is:

1

2.

3.

4.

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability istreated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at |east twelve months after the reporting period.
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The Group classifies al other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Group’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is aso its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactionsin foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates on the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in aforeign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in aforeign currency are trandated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valueis
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of theitem (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or lossis recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and |oss, respectively).

c. Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable



Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on arecurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole€) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)

(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financia instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the servicesis transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expectsto be entitled in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it isthe
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are
provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. Revenues from customer contracts are
considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to
contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. The Group assesses
the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are
recognized on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satised. The Group considersindicators such as
how customer consumes benets as services are rendered or who controls the asset asit is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer,
acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company has determined that an
output method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the performance completed or delivered
to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the
performance obligation identified in the contract.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to
its customers.

Contract Balances

Contract assets



A contract asset isinitially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract
assetsis reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assetsin section (p) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivableis recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assetsin section Financia instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs related obligation(s) under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty asto its determination or realisation exists.

f. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the
effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in atransaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for al deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable



profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will alow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lossis recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if alegally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in ayear is charged to the statement of profit and |oss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is
recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT
credit asan asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The group reviews
the“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

The Holding company and Bioneeds India Private Limited (subsidiary) are not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since respective
companies had opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 during the earlier year.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or servicesis not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payablesin the balance
sheet.

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss asincurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
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Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financia statements of the
respective companies.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposa or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Theresidual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination istheir fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changesin the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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A summary of the policies applied to the Group’ s intangible assetsis as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or acquired
Computer software 3 years Straight line method Acquired
Customer Relationship 8 years Straight line method Acquired

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incursin connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

j. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, alease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of timein exchange for consideration.

Group as alessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and |eases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i)  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, asfollows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are al so subject to impairment.

ii) Lesseliabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises |ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the |ease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable |ease payments that do not depend on
an index or arate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
theinterest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities isincreased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilitiesis remeasured if
there isamodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.



iii) Short-term |eases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e.,
those leases that have alease term of twelve months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
appliesthe lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as alessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

k. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage pattern.

|. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’ s recoverable amount. An asset’ s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases its impairment cal culation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, along-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previoudly revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU'’ s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment lossis reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’ s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal islimited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal isrecognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at arevalued amount, in
which case, the reversal istreated as arevaluation increase.



Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or company of CGUSs) to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU islessthan it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of timeis recognised as a finance
cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) is adefined contribution
scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or lossin subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i)  Thedate of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

ii) Thedate that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changesin the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and |0sses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

ii) Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense when an employee
renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated |eave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as |ong-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the reporting date. Actuarial gaing/losses areimmediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liahilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

0. Share-based payments



The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes model to determine the fair value
of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For
cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of
settlement, with any changesin fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of

each reporting period. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the company uses
Black-Scholes model for VVeeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial asset of one entity and afinancial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group'’ s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and |osses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financia assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)



A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category isthe most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financia assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call options in respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with subsequent changesin fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financia assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with afinancia liability or non-financia host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occursif thereis
either achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of
afinancial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of afinancia asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’ s balance sheet) when:

i)  Therightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group hastransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flowsin
full without material delay to athird party under a‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

Group’ s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be reguired to repay.



Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changesin credit risk, but instead recognises aloss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit |oss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., atwelve
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk sinceinitial recognition, aloss
allowance isrequired for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a
lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financia liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financia liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they areincurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financia instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at theinitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ |osses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)

Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and |osses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liahilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.



Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if thereis a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on anet basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

g. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceedsis allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets
Ind AS 32 criteriafor fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying
amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

s. Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
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non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process
is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or
arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.
However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
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acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

I |

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’ s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i)  Capita management note 38

ii) Financia risk management objectives and policies note 37

iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee

The Group determines the |ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
leaseif it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it isreasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers al relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if thereisasignificant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future devel opments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date, the Group uses a DCF model for
employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in
note 39.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.



Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted pricesin
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financia instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses itsincremental borrowing rate (I1BR) to measure
lease liahilities. The IBR isthe rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over asimilar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates).

Standards notified but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s standalone financial
statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The
Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) has notified certain amendmentsto Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the following standards:

Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statementsis amended to replace the term “significant accounting policies’ with “material accounting
policy information” and providing guidance relating to immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more.

Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changesin Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the definition of accounting estimates as “ monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.”

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from asingle
transaction.

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023. The Company is ng the potential effect of the amendments
onitsfinancia statements. The Company will adopt these amendments, if applicable, from applicability date.



Textual information (8)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary i.e., Bioneeds India Private Limited
(associate till July 15, 2021), its step-down subsidiary companiesi.e., Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited and Activin Chemicals and
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (upto July, 20, 2021) and itsjoint venturei.e., Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited.

Bioneeds and its subsidiary companies are in the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development and Regulatory Servicesto
Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies.

The Company, its subsidiary companies, joint venture and associate are collectively referred to as “Group”.

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company”) is domiciled in Indiawith
itsregistered office at Shivalik Plaza— A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat —
380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in Indiaand is carrying on the
business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the
early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilitiesin India. The Company provides afull range of servicesin phase | and Il
clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and
Biotechnology Industries worldwide.

The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently pursuant to approval from Registrar of
Companies (“ROC"), the name of the Company has changed from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research
Limited.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on June 10, 2022.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division |1 of Schedule 111 to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1,
as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except
when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been indicated as“*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupeesin million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financia statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
associate.
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The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specificaly, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, thereis a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amajority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’ s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
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Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint ventureis atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group hasincurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policiesin line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If there is such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture' in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financia Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for
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consolidation:
Name of the Company Nature of relation with the company gercentage of voting
ower as on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited Associate (Upto July 15, 2021) and 75.10% 30.00%
Subsidiary thereafter
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited Sggi)ldlary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% -
Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, ) )
Private Limited # 2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneedsw.e.f. July 20, 2021.

(C) summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group, its associate and its joint venture presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset istreated as current when it is:

1 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.  Cash or cash eguivaent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability istreated as current when:

1 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

2. Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Itisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.  Thereisno unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
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The Group classifies al other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Company’sfinancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which isalso its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactionsin foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates on the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or trandlation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in aforeign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in aforeign currency are trandated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valueis
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the changein fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or lossis recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

c. Fair value measurement

The Group measures financia instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair valueis the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’ s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financia statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3— Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable



For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on arecurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levelsin the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as awhole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Group’ s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)

(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financia instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the servicesis transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expectsto be entitled in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it isthe
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are
provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group’ s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. Revenues from customer contracts are
considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to
contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract islegally enforceable. The Group assesses
the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are
recognized on straight line basis on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satised at a point in time or over a period of time. The
Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benets as services are rendered or who controls the asset asit is being created or
existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks
and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

The Holding Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price contracts. Use of the
percentage-of -compl etion method requires the Group to determine the actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the
estimated total efforts or coststo be incurred.

In case of Subsidiary company i.e. Bioneeds India Private Limited the performance obligation is setisfied at a point in time in accordance
with the terms of contract with customers and as per the requirement of India Accounting Standard “Ind AS” 115 — “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’ and payment terms which is generally due within 7-90 days from the date of invoice.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to
its customers.



Contract Balances

Contract assets

A contract asset isinitially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract
assetsis reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assetsin section (p) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivableis recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assetsin section Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability isrecognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs related obligation(s) under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty asto its determination or realisation exists.

f. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probabl e that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the
effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

)] When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in atransaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reversein the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary



differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lossis recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensiveincome or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if alegally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in aperiod/ year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the period/year. The
deferred tax asset isrecognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the period/ year in which
the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of
deferred tax asset. The group reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it
isno longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

The Holding company is not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since holding company has opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA
of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or servicesis not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

i) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payablesin the balance
sheet.

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
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equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financial statements of the
respective companies.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Theresidual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.
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An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecogni sed.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’ s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or acquired
Computer software 3 years Straight line method Acquired
Customer Relationship 8 years Straight line method Acquired

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incursin connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

j. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, alease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as alessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and |eases of |ow-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make |lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i)  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liahilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, asfollows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Leaseliabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises |ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments al so include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or arate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because



the interest rateimplicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities isincreased to

reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is amodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change

in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e.,
those leases that have alease term of twelve months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. L ease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as alessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

k. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’ s recoverable amount. An asset’ s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases itsimpairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group’s CGUsto which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, along-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projectionsin the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previoudly revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU'’ s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment lossis reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’ s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal islimited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable



amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal isrecognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at arevalued amount, in
which case, thereversal is treated as arevaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or company of CGUS) to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU isless than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of apast event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to aprovision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of timeis recognised as a finance
cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) is adefined contribution
scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i)  Thedate of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

ii) Thedate that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

ii) Netinterest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense when an employee
renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated |eave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as |ong-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the reporting date. Actuarial gaing/losses areimmediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.



0. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes model to determine the fair value
of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For
cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of
settlement, with any changesin fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of

each reporting period. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the company uses
Black-Scholes model for VVeeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial asset of one entity and afinancial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractua cash flow characteristics and the
Group' s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’ s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financia assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and |osses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)



Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financia asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractua cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category isthe most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’ s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call options in respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which areinitially recognised at fair value with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “ other financial assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with afinancial liability or non-financia host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changesin fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occursif thereis
either achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or areclassification of
afinancia asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of afinancial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’ s balance sheet) when:

i)  Therightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group hastransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flowsin
full without material delay to athird party under a‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.



Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changesin credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit |oss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., atwelve
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk sinceinitial recognition, aloss
allowance isrequired for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a
lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at theinitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ |osses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)



Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amountsis recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financia instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if thereis a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on anet basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

g. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as afinancial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets
Ind AS 32 criteriafor fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying
amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

s. Business Combination and Goodwill

] M
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process
is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or
arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.
However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
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acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

I |

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’ s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i)  Capita management note 38

ii) Financia risk management objectives and policies note 37

iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee

The Group determines the |ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
leaseif it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it isreasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers al relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if thereisasignificant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Export incentive receivable

As per Government notification no. 57/2015-2020 dated March 31, 2020 the holding company and its subsidiary company Bioneeds India
Private Limited are entitled to Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS) benefits on clinical research servicestill year ended March 31,
2020. The rates have been notified during the year ended March 31, 2022 vide Notification no. 29/2015-20 dated September 23, 2021 and
basis the same the Company and its subsidiary Bioneeds India Private Limited has filed the application for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Refer note 9).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future devel opments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date, the Group uses a DCF model for
employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in
note 39.



Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financia assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted pricesin
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these model s are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financia instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses itsincremental borrowing rate (I1BR) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR isthe rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over asimilar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observabl e rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates).

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion
method requires the Group to determine the actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or coststo be
incurred. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input
and productivity. The estimation of total efforts or costs involves significant judgment and is assessed throughout the period of the contract to
reflect any changes based on the latest available information. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded
in the period in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to compl ete the contract.

For associate, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time in accordance with the terms of contract with customers and payment
terms which is generally due within 30-90 days from the date of invoice. Associate renders customer specific services as per the terms of
contract. Associate does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to its customers.

Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’ s financial statements.



Textual information (9)

Description of accounting policy for borrowing costs[Text Block]

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incursin connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Textual information (10)

Description of accounting policy for borrowing costs[Text Block]

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incursin connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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Textual information (11)

Description of accounting policy for business combinations and goodwill [Text Block]

s. Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process is
considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without
significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and
they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured
at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise
as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still
results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain
is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the
disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Textual information (12)

Description of accounting policy for contingent liabilities and contingent assets[Text Block]

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’ s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
i)  Capital management note 38

ii) Financia risk management objectives and policies note 37

iii) Sengitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee

The Group determines the |ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it isreasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has several |ease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers al relevant factorsthat create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if thereisasignificant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future devel opments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date, the Group uses a DCF model for
employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in
note 39.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments



in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted pricesin
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these model s are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financia instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it usesitsincremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR isthe rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over asimilar term, and with asimilar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observabl e rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates).



Textual information (13)

Description of accounting policy for contingent liabilities and contingent assets[Text Block]

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’ s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
i)  Capital management note 38

ii) Financia risk management objectives and policies note 37

iii) Sengitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee

The Group determines the |ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it isreasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has several |ease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers al relevant factorsthat create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if thereisasignificant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Export incentive receivable

As per Government notification no. 57/2015-2020 dated March 31, 2020 the holding company and its subsidiary company Bioneeds India
Private Limited are entitled to Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS) benefits on clinical research servicestill year ended March 31,
2020. The rates have been notified during the year ended March 31, 2022 vide Notification no. 29/2015-20 dated September 23, 2021 and
basis the same the Company and its subsidiary Bioneeds India Private Limited has filed the application for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Refer note 9).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future devel opments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date, the Group uses a DCF model for
employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in



note 39.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted pricesin
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financia instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it usesitsincremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR isthe rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over asimilar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates).

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion
method requires the Group to determine the actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or coststo be
incurred. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input
and productivity. The estimation of total efforts or costs involves significant judgment and is assessed throughout the period of the contract to
reflect any changes based on the latest available information. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded
in the period in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

For associate, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time in accordance with the terms of contract with customers and payment
termswhich is generally due within 30-90 days from the date of invoice. Associate renders customer specific services as per the terms of
contract. Associate does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to its customers.



Textual information (14)

Description of accounting policy for deferred incometax [Text Block]

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in atransaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeabl e future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to alow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lossis recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if alegally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.



Textual information (15)

Description of accounting policy for deferred incometax [Text Block]

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in atransaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeabl e future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to alow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lossis recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if alegally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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Textual information (16)

Description of accounting policy for depreciation expense [Text Block]

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when amajor inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss asincurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financia statements of the
respective companies.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Textual information (17)

Description of accounting policy for depreciation expense [Text Block]

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when amajor inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss asincurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financia statements of the
respective companies.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Textual information (18)

Description of accounting policy for derivative financial instruments[Text Block]

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call optionsin respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with subsequent changesin fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financia assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Textual information (19)

Description of accounting policy for derivative financial instruments[Text Block]

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call optionsin respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with subsequent changesin fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financial assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in ahybrid contract, with afinancial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changesin fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occursif thereis
either achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of
afinancial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Textual information (20)

Description of accounting policy for determining components of cash and cash equivalents[Text Block]

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.



Textual information (21)

Description of accounting policy for determining components of cash and cash equivalents [Text Block]

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Textual information (22)

Description of accounting policy for earnings per share[Text Block]

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Textual information (23)

Description of accounting policy for earnings per share[Text Block]

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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Description of accounting policy for employee benefits [Text Block]

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) is adefined contribution
scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
i)  Thedate of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
ii) Thedate that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changesin the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
ii) Netinterest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense when an employee
renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated |eave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the reporting date. Actuarial gaing/losses areimmediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.
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Description of accounting policy for employee benefits [Text Block]

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) is adefined contribution
scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
i)  Thedate of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
ii) Thedate that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changesin the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
ii) Netinterest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense when an employee
renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated |eave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the reporting date. Actuarial gaing/losses areimmediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.



Textual information (26)

Description of accounting policy for fair value measurement [Text Block]

c. Fair value measurement

The Group mesasures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financia statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on arecurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)



(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financia instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)



Textual information (27)

Description of accounting policy for fair value measurement [Text Block]

c. Fair value measurement

The Group mesasures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financia statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on arecurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levelsin the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as awhole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)



(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financia instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)



Textual information (28)

Description of accounting policy for financial assets[Text Block]

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group'’ s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or l0ss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financia assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financia asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within abusiness model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractua cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category isthe most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost



using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.



Textual information (29)

Description of accounting policy for financial assets[Text Block]

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group'’ s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or l0ss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financia assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financia asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within abusiness model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractua cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category isthe most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost



using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.



Textual information (30)

Description of accounting policy for financial instruments[Text Block]

p. Financia instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial asset of one entity and afinancial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group' s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’ s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financia asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and



ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call options in respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with subsequent changesin fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financia assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with afinancial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changesin fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occursif thereis
either achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of
afinancial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, apart of afinancia asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’ s balance sheet) when:

i)  Therightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flowsin
full without material delay to athird party under a‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

Group'’ s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be reguired to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track



changesin credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit |oss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., atwelve
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, aloss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a
lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liahilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at theinitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ |osses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ |osses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)

Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and |osses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.



This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.



Textual information (31)

Description of accounting policy for financial instruments[Text Block]

p. Financia instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial asset of one entity and afinancial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group' s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’ s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financia asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and



ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call options in respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with subsequent changesin fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financia assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with afinancial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changesin fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occursif thereis
either achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of
afinancial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, apart of afinancia asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’ s balance sheet) when:

i)  Therightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flowsin
full without material delay to athird party under a‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

Group'’ s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be reguired to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track



changesin credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit |oss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., atwelve
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, aloss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a
lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liahilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at theinitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ |osses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ |osses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)

Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and |osses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.



This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Textual information (32)

Description of accounting policy for financial instrumentsat fair value through profit or loss[Text Block]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liahilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at theinitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ |osses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ |osses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.



Textual information (33)
Description of accounting policy for financial instrumentsat fair value through profit or loss[Text Block]
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.
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Description of accounting policy for financial liabilities [Text Block]

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financia liabilities at fair value through profit or lossinclude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ losses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)

Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.



Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of anew liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amountsis recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financia instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if thereis a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on anet basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.



Textual information (35)

Description of accounting policy for financial liabilities [Text Block]

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financia liabilities at fair value through profit or lossinclude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ losses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)

Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.



Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of anew liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amountsis recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financia instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if thereis a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on anet basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Textua information (36)

Description of accounting policy for foreign currency transation [Text Block]

b. Foreign currencies
The Group’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is aso its functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactionsin foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates on the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in aforeign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in aforeign currency are trandated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valueis
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or lossis recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and |oss, respectively).
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Description of accounting policy for foreign currency transation [Text Block]

b. Foreign currencies
The Company’ s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which isalso its functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactionsin foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates on the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in aforeign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in aforeign currency are trandated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valueis
determined. The gain or loss arising on trandation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the changein fair value of theitem (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or lossis recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).



Textual information (38)

Description of accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets [Text Block]

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’ s recoverable amount. An asset’ s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In ng value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposdl,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases itsimpairment cal culation on detailed budgets and forecast cal culations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group's CGUsto which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, along-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projectionsin the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’ s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment lossis reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’ s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal islimited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal isrecognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at arevalued amount, in
which case, thereversal is treated as arevaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or company of CGUS) to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU islessthan it’'s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.



Textual information (39)

Description of accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets [Text Block]

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’ s recoverable amount. An asset’ s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In ng value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposdl,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases itsimpairment cal culation on detailed budgets and forecast cal culations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group's CGUsto which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, along-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projectionsin the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’ s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment lossis reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’ s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal islimited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal isrecognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at arevalued amount, in
which case, thereversal is treated as arevaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or company of CGUS) to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU islessthan it’'s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.



Textual information (40)

Description of accounting policy for incometax [Text Block]

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the
effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in atransaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liahility in atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to alow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will alow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lossis recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if alegally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.



Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in ayear is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is
recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT
credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The group reviews
the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

The Holding company and Bioneeds India Private Limited (subsidiary) are not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since respective
companies had opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 during the earlier year.

Textual information (41)

Description of accounting policy for incometax [Text Block]

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probabl e that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the
effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.
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Textual information (42)

Description of accounting policy for intangible assets and goodwill [Text Block]

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination istheir fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changesin the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’ s intangible assetsis as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or acquired
Computer software 3 years Straight line method Acquired
Customer Relationship 8 years Straight line method Acquired
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Textual information (43)

Description of accounting policy for intangible assets and goodwill [Text Block]

s. Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process is
considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without
significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and
they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured
at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise
as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still
results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain
is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the
disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Description of accounting policy for investment in associates [Text Block]

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint ventureis atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ sinvestments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group hasincurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policiesin line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture' in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Description of accounting policy for investment in associates [Text Block]

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specificaly, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amajority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstancesin ng whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
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inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those palicies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’ s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’ s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceedsiits interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.
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The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint ventureisimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for

consolidation:
Name of the Company Nature of relation with the company Percentage of voting
Power as on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited ASSO.C"T"te (Upto July 15, 2021) and 75.10% 30.00%
Subsidiary thereafter
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited gggi)ldlary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% -
Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, i i
Private Limited # 2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneeds w.e.f. July 20, 2021.
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Description of accounting policy for investment in associates and joint ventures|[Text Block]

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint ventureis atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ sinvestments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group hasincurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policiesin line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture' in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.



Textual information (47)

Description of accounting policy for investment in associates and joint ventures[Text Block]

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specificaly, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amajority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstancesin ng whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
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inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those palicies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’ s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’ s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceedsiits interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.
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The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint ventureisimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for

consolidation:
Name of the Company Nature of relation with the company Percentage of voting
Power as on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited ASSO.C"T"te (Upto July 15, 2021) and 75.10% 30.00%
Subsidiary thereafter
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited gggi)ldlary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% -
Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, i i
Private Limited # 2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneeds w.e.f. July 20, 2021.
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Description of accounting policy for investmentsin joint ventures[Text Block]

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint ventureis atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ sinvestments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group hasincurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policiesin line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture' in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Description of accounting policy for investmentsin joint ventures[Text Block]

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specificaly, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amajority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstancesin ng whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
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inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those palicies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’ s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’ s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceedsiits interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.
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The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint ventureisimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for

consolidation:
Name of the Company Nature of relation with the company Percentage of voting
Power as on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited ASSO.C"T"te (Upto July 15, 2021) and 75.10% 30.00%
Subsidiary thereafter
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited gggi)ldlary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% -
Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, i i
Private Limited # 2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneeds w.e.f. July 20, 2021.
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Description of accounting policy for leases[Text Block]

j. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, alease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of timein exchange for consideration.

Group as alessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and |eases of |ow-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i)  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liahilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are al so subject to impairment.

ii) Leaseliabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises |ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable |ease payments that depend on an index or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments al so include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or arate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rateimplicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is amodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e.,
those leases that have alease term of twelve months or |ess from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to |eases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. L ease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as alessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.



Textual information (51)

Description of accounting policy for leases[Text Block]

j. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, alease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of timein exchange for consideration.

Group as alessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and |eases of |ow-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i)  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liahilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are al so subject to impairment.

ii) Leaseliabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises |ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable |ease payments that depend on an index or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments al so include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or arate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rateimplicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is amodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e.,
those leases that have alease term of twelve months or |ess from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to |eases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. L ease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as alessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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Description of accounting policy for measuring inventories[Text Block]

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage pattern.

Textual information (53)

Description of accounting policy for measuring inventories[Text Block]

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
isdetermined on firstin, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Textual information (54)

Description of accounting policy for property, plant and equipment [Text Block]

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when amajor inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss asincurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financia statements of the
respective companies.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Textual information (55)

Description of accounting policy for property, plant and equipment [Text Block]

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when amajor inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss asincurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financia statements of the
respective companies.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Textua information (56)

Description of accounting policy for provisions[Text Block]

m. Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and areliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to aprovision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as afinance
cost.

Textual information (57)

Description of accounting policy for provisions|[Text Block]

m. Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as afinance
cost.



Textual information (58)

Description of accounting policy for recognition of revenue [Text Block]

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the servicesis transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expectsto be entitled in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it isthe
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are
provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group’ s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. Revenues from customer contracts are
considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to
contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. The Group assesses
the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are
recognized on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satised. The Group considersindicators such as
how customer consumes benets as services are rendered or who controls the asset asiit is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer,
acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company has determined that an
output method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the performance completed or delivered
to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the
performance obligation identified in the contract.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to
its customers.

Textual information (59)

Description of accounting policy for recognition of revenue [Text Block]

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion
method requires the Group to determine the actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or coststo be
incurred. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input
and productivity. The estimation of total efforts or costs involves significant judgment and is assessed throughout the period of the contract to
reflect any changes based on the latest available information. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded
in the period in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

For associate, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time in accordance with the terms of contract with customers and payment
terms which is generally due within 30-90 days from the date of invoice. Associate renders customer specific services as per the terms of
contract. Associate does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to its customers.



Textual information (60)

Description of accounting policy for taxes other than incometax [Text Block]

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

)] When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or servicesis not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority isincluded as part of receivables or payablesin the balance

sheet.

[610200] Notes - Corporate information and statement of IndAs compliance

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Disclosure of corporate information notes and other explanatory information
[TextBlock]

Textual information (61)
[See below]

Statement of Ind AS compliance [TextBlock]

Textual information (62)
[See below]

Textual information (63)
[See below]

Whether there is any departure from Ind AS

No

No

Whether there are reclassifications to comparative amounts

No

No

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [TextBlock]

Textual information (64)
[See below]

Textual information (65)
[See below]




Textual information (61)

Disclosure of corporate information notes and other explanatory information [Text Block]

1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary i.e., Bioneeds India Private Limited
(associate till July 15, 2021), its step-down subsidiary companiesi.e., Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited and Activin Chemicals and
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (upto July 20, 2021) and its joint venturei.e., Ingenuity

Biosciences Private Limited.

Bioneeds and its subsidiary companies are in the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development and Regulatory Servicesto
Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies.

The Company, its subsidiary companies, joint venture and associate are collectively referred to as“ Group”.

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company” or “Holding Company”) is
domiciled in Indiawith its registered office at Shivalik Plaza— A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in Indiaand is carrying on the
business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the
early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilitiesin India. The Company provides afull range of servicesin phase | and Il
clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and
Biotechnology Industries worldwide.

The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently pursuant to approval from Registrar of
Companies (“ROC"), the name of the Company has changed from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research
Limited.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on September 05, 2023.



Textual information (62)

Statement of Ind AS compliance [Text Block]

(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division |1 of Schedule 11 to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule I,
as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except
when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been indicated as“*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupeesin million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amagjority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
The Group' s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.
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The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ sinvestments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’ s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
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in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financia Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for

consolidation:
Name of the Company Nature of relation with the company Eercentage of voting
ower as on
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited Associate (Upto July 15, 2021) and 87.00% 75.10%
Subsidiary thereafter
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited gg;’%d'ary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, | 155 04 100.00%
Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, ) )
Private Limited # 2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneeds w.e.f. July 20, 2021.
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Textual information (63)

Statement of Ind AS compliance [Text Block]

(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division |1 of Schedule 11 to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule I,
as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except
when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been indicated as“*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupeesin million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amagjority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
The Group' s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.
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The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ sinvestments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’ s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
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in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financia Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for

consolidation:
Name of the Company Nature of relation with the company Eercentage of voting
ower as on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited Associate (Upto July 15, 2021) and 75.10% 30.00%
Subsidiary thereafter
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited gggi)ldlary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% -
Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, ) )
Private Limited # 2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneeds w.e.f. July 20, 2021.
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Textual information (64)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary i.e., Bioneeds India Private Limited
(associate till July 15, 2021), its step-down subsidiary companiesi.e., Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited and Activin Chemicals and
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (upto July 20, 2021) and its joint venturei.e., Ingenuity

Biosciences Private Limited.

Bioneeds and its subsidiary companies are in the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development and Regulatory Servicesto
Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies.

The Company, its subsidiary companies, joint venture and associate are collectively referred to as“ Group”.

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company” or “Holding Company”) is
domiciled in Indiawith its registered office at Shivalik Plaza— A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in Indiaand is carrying on the
business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the
early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilitiesin India. The Company provides afull range of servicesin phase | and Il
clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and
Biotechnology Industries worldwide.

The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently pursuant to approval from Registrar of
Companies (“ROC"), the name of the Company has changed from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research
Limited.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on September 05, 2023.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11 to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11,
as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except
when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been indicated as“*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupeesin million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
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associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, thereis a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amajority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group'’ s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
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Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint ventureis atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ sinvestments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’ s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognisesits share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policiesin line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment |oss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If thereis such evidence, the Group cal cul ates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture' in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation




VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

The Financia Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for
consolidation:

Name of the Company

Nature of relation with the company

Percentage of voting

Power as on
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited éﬁig%?;?y%g&;#g 15, 2021) and 87.00% 75.10%
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% 100.00%

2021)

Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals
Private Limited #

Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16,
2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneedsw.e.f. July 20, 2021.

(C) Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group, its associate and its joint venture presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset istreated as current when it is:

1

2.

3.

4.

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability istreated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at |east twelve months after the reporting period.
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The Group classifies al other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Group’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is aso its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactionsin foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates on the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in aforeign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in aforeign currency are trandated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valueis
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of theitem (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or lossis recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and |oss, respectively).

c. Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable



Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on arecurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole€) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)

(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financia instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the servicesis transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expectsto be entitled in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it isthe
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are
provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. Revenues from customer contracts are
considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to
contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. The Group assesses
the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are
recognized on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satised. The Group considersindicators such as
how customer consumes benets as services are rendered or who controls the asset asit is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer,
acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company has determined that an
output method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the performance completed or delivered
to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the
performance obligation identified in the contract.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to
its customers.

Contract Balances

Contract assets



A contract asset isinitially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract
assetsis reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assetsin section (p) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivableis recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assetsin section Financia instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs related obligation(s) under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty asto its determination or realisation exists.

f. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the
effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in atransaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for al deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable



profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will alow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lossis recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if alegally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in ayear is charged to the statement of profit and |oss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is
recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT
credit asan asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The group reviews
the“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

The Holding company and Bioneeds India Private Limited (subsidiary) are not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since respective
companies had opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 during the earlier year.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or servicesis not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payablesin the balance
sheet.

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss asincurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
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Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financia statements of the
respective companies.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposa or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Theresidual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination istheir fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changesin the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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A summary of the policies applied to the Group’ s intangible assetsis as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or acquired
Computer software 3 years Straight line method Acquired
Customer Relationship 8 years Straight line method Acquired

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incursin connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

j. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, alease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of timein exchange for consideration.

Group as alessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and |eases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i)  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, asfollows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are al so subject to impairment.

ii) Lesseliabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises |ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the |ease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable |ease payments that do not depend on
an index or arate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
theinterest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities isincreased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilitiesis remeasured if
there isamodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.



iii) Short-term |eases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e.,
those leases that have alease term of twelve months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
appliesthe lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as alessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

k. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage pattern.

|. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’ s recoverable amount. An asset’ s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases its impairment cal culation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, along-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previoudly revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU'’ s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment lossis reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’ s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal islimited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal isrecognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at arevalued amount, in
which case, the reversal istreated as arevaluation increase.



Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or company of CGUSs) to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU islessthan it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of timeis recognised as a finance
cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) is adefined contribution
scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or lossin subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i)  Thedate of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

ii) Thedate that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changesin the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and |0sses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

ii) Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense when an employee
renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated |eave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as |ong-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the reporting date. Actuarial gaing/losses areimmediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liahilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

0. Share-based payments



The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes model to determine the fair value
of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For
cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of
settlement, with any changesin fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of

each reporting period. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the company uses
Black-Scholes model for VVeeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial asset of one entity and afinancial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group'’ s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and |osses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financia assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)



A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category isthe most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financia assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call options in respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with subsequent changesin fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financia assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with afinancia liability or non-financia host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occursif thereis
either achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of
afinancial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of afinancia asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’ s balance sheet) when:

i)  Therightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group hastransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flowsin
full without material delay to athird party under a‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

Group’ s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be reguired to repay.



Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changesin credit risk, but instead recognises aloss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit |oss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., atwelve
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk sinceinitial recognition, aloss
allowance isrequired for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a
lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financia liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financia liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they areincurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financia instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at theinitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ |osses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)

Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and |osses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liahilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.



Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if thereis a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on anet basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

g. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceedsis allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets
Ind AS 32 criteriafor fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying
amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

s. Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
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non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process
is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or
arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.
However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
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acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

I |

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’ s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i)  Capita management note 38

ii) Financia risk management objectives and policies note 37

iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee

The Group determines the |ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
leaseif it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it isreasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers al relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if thereisasignificant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future devel opments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date, the Group uses a DCF model for
employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in
note 39.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.



Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted pricesin
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financia instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses itsincremental borrowing rate (I1BR) to measure
lease liahilities. The IBR isthe rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over asimilar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates).

Standards notified but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s standalone financial
statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The
Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) has notified certain amendmentsto Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the following standards:

Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statementsis amended to replace the term “significant accounting policies’ with “material accounting
policy information” and providing guidance relating to immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more.

Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changesin Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the definition of accounting estimates as “ monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.”

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from asingle
transaction.

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023. The Company is ng the potential effect of the amendments
onitsfinancia statements. The Company will adopt these amendments, if applicable, from applicability date.



Textual information (65)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary i.e., Bioneeds India Private Limited
(associate till July 15, 2021), its step-down subsidiary companiesi.e., Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited and Activin Chemicals and
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (upto July, 20, 2021) and itsjoint venturei.e., Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited.

Bioneeds and its subsidiary companies are in the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development and Regulatory Servicesto
Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies.

The Company, its subsidiary companies, joint venture and associate are collectively referred to as “Group”.

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company”) is domiciled in Indiawith
itsregistered office at Shivalik Plaza— A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat —
380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in Indiaand is carrying on the
business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the
early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilitiesin India. The Company provides afull range of servicesin phase | and Il
clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and
Biotechnology Industries worldwide.

The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently pursuant to approval from Registrar of
Companies (“ROC"), the name of the Company has changed from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research
Limited.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on June 10, 2022.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division |1 of Schedule 111 to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1,
as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except
when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been indicated as“*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupeesin million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financia statements of the

company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted by the Company, its joint venture and its
associate.
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The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specificaly, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, thereis a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than amajority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’ s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/period
areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiary.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
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Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to

retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint ventureis atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.

The Group’ s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate or ajoint ventureisinitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changesin the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change
in OCI of thoseinvesteesis presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changesin equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’ s share of losses of an associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group hasincurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and ajoint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and
loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policiesin line with those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unlessit is
impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on itsinvestment in its
associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture isimpaired. If there is such evidence, the Group cal culates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as * Share of profit of an associate and
ajoint venture' in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financia Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture have been considered for
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consolidation:
Name of the Company Nature of relation with the company gercentage of voting
ower as on
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited Associate (Upto July 15, 2021) and 75.10% 30.00%
Subsidiary thereafter
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited Sggi)ldlary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, 100.00% -
Activin Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. July 16, ) )
Private Limited # 2021)

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneedsw.e.f. July 20, 2021.

(C) summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group, its associate and its joint venture presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset istreated as current when it is:

1 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.  Cash or cash eguivaent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability istreated as current when:

1 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

2. Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Itisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.  Thereisno unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
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The Group classifies al other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Company’sfinancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which isalso its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactionsin foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates on the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or trandlation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in aforeign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in aforeign currency are trandated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valueis
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the changein fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or lossis recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

c. Fair value measurement

The Group measures financia instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair valueis the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’ s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financia statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3— Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable



For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on arecurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levelsin the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as awhole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Group’ s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)

(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financia instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the servicesis transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expectsto be entitled in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it isthe
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are
provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group’ s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. Revenues from customer contracts are
considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to
contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract islegally enforceable. The Group assesses
the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are
recognized on straight line basis on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satised at a point in time or over a period of time. The
Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benets as services are rendered or who controls the asset asit is being created or
existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks
and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

The Holding Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price contracts. Use of the
percentage-of -compl etion method requires the Group to determine the actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the
estimated total efforts or coststo be incurred.

In case of Subsidiary company i.e. Bioneeds India Private Limited the performance obligation is setisfied at a point in time in accordance
with the terms of contract with customers and as per the requirement of India Accounting Standard “Ind AS” 115 — “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’ and payment terms which is generally due within 7-90 days from the date of invoice.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to
its customers.



Contract Balances

Contract assets

A contract asset isinitially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract
assetsis reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assetsin section (p) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivableis recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assetsin section Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability isrecognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs related obligation(s) under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty asto its determination or realisation exists.

f. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probabl e that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the
effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

)] When the deferred tax liability arises from theinitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in atransaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reversein the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary



differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interestsin joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lossis recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensiveincome or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if alegally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in aperiod/ year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the period/year. The
deferred tax asset isrecognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the period/ year in which
the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of
deferred tax asset. The group reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it
isno longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

The Holding company is not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since holding company has opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA
of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or servicesis not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

i) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payablesin the balance
sheet.

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use isincluded in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of property, plant and
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equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule Il of the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery 5to0 15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life whichever islower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding company and as per the straight-line method
by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern of consumption of those future economic benefitsin separate financial statements of the
respective companies.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Theresidual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.
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An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) isincluded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecogni sed.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’ s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or acquired
Computer software 3 years Straight line method Acquired
Customer Relationship 8 years Straight line method Acquired

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incursin connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

j. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, alease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as alessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and |eases of |ow-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make |lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i)  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liahilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, asfollows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Leaseliabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises |ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments al so include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or arate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because



the interest rateimplicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities isincreased to

reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is amodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change

in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e.,
those leases that have alease term of twelve months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. L ease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as alessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

k. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’ s recoverable amount. An asset’ s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases itsimpairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group’s CGUsto which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, along-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projectionsin the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previoudly revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to
the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU'’ s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment lossis reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’ s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal islimited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable



amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal isrecognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at arevalued amount, in
which case, thereversal is treated as arevaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or company of CGUS) to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU isless than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of apast event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to aprovision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of timeis recognised as a finance
cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (ESIC) is adefined contribution
scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i)  Thedate of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

ii) Thedate that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

ii) Netinterest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense when an employee
renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated |eave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as |ong-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the reporting date. Actuarial gaing/losses areimmediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.



0. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes model to determine the fair value
of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For
cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of
settlement, with any changesin fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of

each reporting period. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the company uses
Black-Scholes model for VVeeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial asset of one entity and afinancial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractua cash flow characteristics and the
Group' s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures afinancial asset at itsfair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for afinancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’ s business model for managing financial assets refersto how it managesits financial assetsin order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assetsin order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within atime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financia assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and |osses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)



Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financia asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i)  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractua cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category isthe most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’ s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changesin fair value recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with
profit/loss being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered into call options in respect of its
investment in its subsidiary which areinitially recognised at fair value with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “ other financial assets/other financial liabilities’. Profits and losses arising
from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with afinancial liability or non-financia host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changesin fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occursif thereis
either achange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or areclassification of
afinancia asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of afinancial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’ s balance sheet) when:

i)  Therightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group hastransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flowsin
full without material delay to athird party under a‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.



Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changesin credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit |oss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., atwelve
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk sinceinitial recognition, aloss
allowance isrequired for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a
lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’ sfinancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ii) Financid liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at theinitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ |osses attributable to
changesin own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changesin fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (L oans and borrowings)



Thisisthe category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amountsis recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financia instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if thereis a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on anet basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

g. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as afinancial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets
Ind AS 32 criteriafor fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying
amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changesin value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

s. Business Combination and Goodwill
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process
is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or
arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.
However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
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acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

I |

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’ s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i)  Capita management note 38

ii) Financia risk management objectives and policies note 37

iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee

The Group determines the |ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
leaseif it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it isreasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers al relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if thereisasignificant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Export incentive receivable

As per Government notification no. 57/2015-2020 dated March 31, 2020 the holding company and its subsidiary company Bioneeds India
Private Limited are entitled to Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS) benefits on clinical research servicestill year ended March 31,
2020. The rates have been notified during the year ended March 31, 2022 vide Notification no. 29/2015-20 dated September 23, 2021 and
basis the same the Company and its subsidiary Bioneeds India Private Limited has filed the application for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Refer note 9).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future devel opments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date, the Group uses a DCF model for
employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in
note 39.



Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financia assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted pricesin
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these model s are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financia instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses itsincremental borrowing rate (I1BR) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR isthe rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over asimilar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observabl e rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates).

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion
method requires the Group to determine the actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or coststo be
incurred. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input
and productivity. The estimation of total efforts or costs involves significant judgment and is assessed throughout the period of the contract to
reflect any changes based on the latest available information. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded
in the period in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to compl ete the contract.

For associate, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time in accordance with the terms of contract with customers and payment
terms which is generally due within 30-90 days from the date of invoice. Associate renders customer specific services as per the terms of
contract. Associate does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to its customers.

Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’ s financial statements.



[610300] Notes - Accounting policies, changesin accounting estimatesand errors

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Disclosure of changesin accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors
[TextBlock]
Disclosure of initial application of standards or interpretations
[TextBlock]
Whether in_itial applicat!on of an Ind AS has an effect on the No No
current period or any prior period
Disclosure of voluntary change in accounting policy [TextBlock]
Whether there is any voluntary change in accounting policy No No
Disclosure of changesin accounting estimates [ TextBlock]
Whether there are changes in acounting estimates during the year No No




[400600] Notes - Property, plant and equipment

Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] (D
Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [AXis] Property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and grosscarrying
amount [Axis]

Grosscarrying

Carrying amount [Member] amount [Member]

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

922.1 360.18 922.1

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and 0
equipment

766.59 0

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property, 0 0| 0
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or

-339.65
loss

-228.03

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and

: -339.65
equipment

-228.03

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and 0 0|
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss, 0 0
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equi pment

Impairment |oss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and 0 0
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property, 0 0
plant and eguipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and 0 0 0
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and 0 0 0
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property, 0 0 0
plant and equipment

Disposal's and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and

' 71.52,
equipment

11.13 99.43

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,

property, plant and equipment 71.52]

11.13 99.43




Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) in property,
plant and eguipment

510.93

887.61

822.67

Property, plant and equipment at end of
period

2,137.66]

1,626.73

739.12

2,974.22




Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] (2

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [AXis]

Property, plant and equipment [M ember]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned and leased assets [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [AXis]

Accumulated depreciation and

Gross carrying amount [Member] impairment [Member]

01/04/2021 01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to 31/03/2021 to to
31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

360.18

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

766.59

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

339.65 228.03

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

339.65 228.03

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

13.83 27.91 2.7

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and egquipment

13.83 27.91 2.7

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment




VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

Tota increas_e (decrease) in property, 1112.94 311.74 29533
plant and equipment T ) ’
Pro.p‘arty' plant and equipment a end of 2,151.55 1,038.61 836.56 524,82

perio ,151. ,038. : )

198



Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

NE)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]|

Property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned and leased
assets [M ember]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and eguipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

279.5

3.05

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

123.43

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

-111.25

-79.57

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

-111.25

-79.57

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equi pment

Impairment |oss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

55.92

151

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and equipment

55.92

151

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment




Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and 0 0
equipment
Total increase (decrease) in property, 112.33 454
plant and equipment ’ ’
Property, plant and equipment at end of 299.49) 520.82 408.49 363.00

period




Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

(4

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]|

Property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depr eciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
[Member]

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and eguipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

279.5

3.05

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

123.43

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

111.25

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

111.25

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment |oss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and eguipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

72.76)

2.06

16.84

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and equipment

72.76)

2.06

16.84

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment




Decrease through loss of control of

subsidiary, property, plant and 0 0 0

equipment

Total increase (decrease) in property, 206.74 124.42 0441

plant and equipment ’ ’ ’
Property, plant and equipment at end of 809.23 602.49 478.07 288.41

period




Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

(5

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [AXis]

Property, plant and equipment [M ember]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Assets held under lease [M ember]

Owned assets [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [AXis]

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment [Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

642.6

357.13

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

643.16)

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

79.57|

-228.4]

-148.46

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

79.57

-228.4

-148.46

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

0.55

15.6

9.62

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and egquipment

0.55

15.6

9.62

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment




Total increase (decrease) in property, 79.02 3986 84221

plant and equipment ’ ’ ’
Property, plant and equipment at end of 194 114.98 1,616.84 1,218.24

period . ,616. ,218.
Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] .(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned assets [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Carrying amount
[Member]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and eguipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

642.6

357.13

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

643.16

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and eguipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

26.67

11.77]

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and eguipment

26.67

11.77

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) in property,
plant and equipment

615.93

988.52

Property, plant and equipment at end of
period

376.03

2,164.99

1,549.06

560.54




Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

A7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]|

Property, plant and equipment [Member]

Land [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned assets [M ember]

Assets held under
lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depr eciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impair ment [Member]

Carrying amount
[Member]

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to to 31/03/2021
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

80.14

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

228.4 148.46

-15.24

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

228.4 148.46

-15.24

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

11.07| 2.15

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and eguipment

11.07| 2.15

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment




VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

Total increase (decrease) in property, 21733 14631 64.9
plant and equipment ’ ’ )
Pro_p%rty, plant and equipment at end of 548 15 330,82 18451 140.92

perio

206



Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

NG)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [AXis]

Land [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Assets held under lease [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [AXis]

Carrying amount [Member]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

80.14

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

81.75

81.75

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

-5.73

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

-5.73

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and egquipment

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment




Total increase (decrease) in property,

- 76.02 80.14] 81.75]
plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment at end of

! 76.02, 0 161.89 81.75
period

Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] (9
Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Land [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying Grosscarrying

amount [Axig] amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and impairment [M ember]

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
31/03/2021 to to 31/03/2021
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and eguipment
[Abstract]

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or

15.24 5.73
loss

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and

- 15.24 5.73
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and 0 0
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or 10ss, 0 0
property, plant and equipment

Impairment |oss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and 0 0
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property, 0 0
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and 0 0
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and 0 0
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property, 0 0
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and equipment

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and 0 0
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and 0 0
equipment

Total increase (decrease) in property,

plant and equipment 15.24 5.73

Property, plant and equipment at end of

; 0 20.97 5.73 0
period




Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

.(10)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]|

Land [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned assets [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [AXis]

Carrying amount [Member]

Grosscarrying
amount [Member]

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

to

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

39.71

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and egquipment

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment
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Total increase (decrease) in property, 0 39.71 0
plant and equipment )
Property, plant and equipment at end of 3971 3971 0 3971
period ' ' '
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Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

-(11)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [AXis]

Land [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned assets [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [AXis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022

to

31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

39.71

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and egquipment

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment
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Total increase (decrease) in property, 3971

plant and equipment )
Property, plant and equipment at end of 39.71 0
period )
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Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

.(12)

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]|

Land [Member]

Buildings [M ember]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned assets
[Member]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2021

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
to to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

31/03/2021

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and eguipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

199.36 3.05

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

0 41.68

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

-96.01 -73.84]

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

-96.01 -73.84]

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equi pment

Impairment |oss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

55.92 151

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and equipment

55.92 151

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment




Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and 0 0
equipment
Total increase (decrease) in property, 47.43 -30.62
plant and equipment ’ )
Property, plant and equipment at end of 3799 33247 363.09

period




Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]
Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

.(13)

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]|

Buildings[Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depr eciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
[Member]

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and eguipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

199.36]

3.05

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

41.68

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

96.01

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

96.01

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment |oss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and eguipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

72.76)

2.06

16.84

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and equipment

72.76)

2.06

16.84

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment




Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) in property,
plant and equipment

126.6

42.67

79.17

Property, plant and equipment at end of
period

647.34

520.74

478.07

267.44




Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table]

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

-(14)

Classes of property, plant and equipment [AXis]

Buildings [M ember]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Assets held under lease [M ember] Owned assets [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [AXis]

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment [Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

01/04/2022 01/04/2021
31/03/2021 to to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and equipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

79.06

116.39

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

157.28

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Depreciation recognised in profit or
loss

73.84

-25.98

-10.43

Depreciation recognised as part of
cost of other assets

Total Depreciation property plant and
equipment

73.84

-25.98

-10.43

Impairment loss recognised in profit
or loss, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in other
comprehensive income, property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in other comprehensive income, property,
plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property, plant and
equipment [Abstract]

Increase (decrease) through
transfers, property, plant and
equipment

Increase (decrease) through other
changes, property, plant and
equipment

Total increase (decrease) through
transfers and other changes, property,
plant and equipment

Disposals and retirements, property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disposals, property, plant and
equipment

0.55

Retirements, property, plant and
equipment

Total disposals and retirements,
property, plant and egquipment

0.55

Decrease through classified as held
for sale, property, plant and
equipment

Decrease through loss of control of
subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment




Total increase (decrease) in property, 73.29 53,08 26324

plant and equipment ’ ’ ’
Property, plant and equipment at end of 18827 114.98 316.32 263.24

period ' ) ' '
Disclosur e of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(15)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values arein Millions of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Buildings[Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Owned assets [M ember]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Carrying amount
[Member]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2021

01/04/2022
to
31/03/2023

01/04/2021
to
31/03/2022

31/03/2021

Disclosure of detailed information about property,
plant and equipment [Abstract]

Disclosure of detailed information about
property, plant and equipment [Line items]

Reconciliation of changesin property, plant
and equipment [Abstract]

Changes in property, plant and eguipment
[Abstract]

Additions other than through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

79.06

116.39

Acquisitions through business
combinations, property, plant and
equipment

157.28

Increase (decrease) through net
exchange differences, property,
plant and eguipment

Revaluation increase (decrease),
property, plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) through transfers and
other changes, property